
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL #COMM2019-1 
Graphic Design Services 

 
Questions & Answers 

February 22, 2019 

 

A compilation of the questions and answers are provided below.  Questions with similar topics have 
been grouped together to better assist proposers. 
 
 
PRIOR CONTRACT INFORMATION 
 

Question: LABAVN puts the budget at $90,000. Is that $90,000 per year ($270,000 
total), or $90,000 total for the entire three years? Is it $90k for 3 years or 
$90k per year?  We want to make sure we can do the job under the 
appropriate budget. Does the $90K budget (listed on the LABVN website) 
refer to each year of the 3-year contract or all 3 years combined? Is the budget 
flexible? 

 
Answer: The budget for this contract will be determined at the time of award based on the 

hourly and line item fees proposed by the awarded bidder. The maximum budget 
for the previous 3-year contract was $90,000. 

 
Question: Who is the current contractor?  Is there a design agency that your team 

currently works with? If so, will there be a transitional period? 
 
Answer: The current contractor is Firedrill.  There will be no transition period.  
 
 
SERVICES 
 
Question: What sort of services are needed for “photography/photos”? Is this more 

just about editing and processing photos in your photo library and/or 
finding and selecting stock photos?  

 
Answer: We want to update our library of photos for use on the web and in print 

communications.  We like to use photos of our members, both past and 
present.  We will consult with the Contractor to provide the best option to do 
this. We currently have access to stock photos. 
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Question: Do you need us to provide photographers at specific events, with  
  creative direction, etc. for them?  
 
Answer: Photography services will be used on an as-needed basis.  We haven’t required 

the use of photographers for any specific events by the previous or existing 
Contractor.  If this service is part of your business, you must choose to include it 
or not as part of the services you offer.  

 

Question: Do you already have a printer you work with (if so, who is it?) / Is there an 
existing print shop that your team currently works with?  Will the LAFPP 
be responsible for sourcing printing services or will the designer/firm be 
tasked to contract out for printing all related materials?  

 
Answer: We generally work directly with the City’s Printing Services 

 
Question: Do you need us to provide printing services? 
 
Answer: There may be instances when we will need printing services outside of the City’s 

Print Shop. 
 
Question: If we choose not to change the LAFPP logo/brand at this time, briefly 

describe how you would design around and/or enhance the existing 
logo/brand.” Logo and branding/re-branding are not listed under the scope 
of work. In paragraph 1.3.6 you state that the selected firm will be required 
to adhere to the current branding, “but may expand the use of the brand, 
while maintaining its integrity.”/ Is redesign of the logo/brand included in 
this RFP?/What do you mean by “expand the use of the brand?/If logo and 
rebranding are to be included in this the cost proposal, can you provide 
any additional information as to what you are seeking?/ Branding 
Guidelines-Can you provide those now, so we can understand the extent 
to which we will have pre-existing guidance on design styles, etc.? 

 
Answer: We are asking for you to describe your process in the event we chose to enhance 

our current brand.  It is not certain that we will request this service. It is not 
necessary to view the branding guidelines at this time.  

 
   

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Question: Will LAFPP be providing final written content, or content that is not quite 
final and will need more edits?  

 
Answer: We provide the text in Microsoft Word and may require more edits upon review    

of draft from the Contractor.  
 
Question: Are the photos you have currently high-resolution images that can be 

printed at an acceptable level of quality? 
 
Answer: Photos in our library are JPEG.   
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Question: What format will it be in (Word, spreadsheets, PowerPoint, etc.)? 
 
Answer: Microsoft Word, Excel, and PowerPoint. 
 
Question: Will you edit content after it is laid out in the design? About how many 

times do you make edits once content is designed? 
 
Answer: We will submit the text to the Contractor. Contractor will return the first draft for 

review.  Each step thereafter will depend on the necessary edits. 
 

Question: In what format are other assets, such as logos, illustrations, diagrams, 
financial statements, data visualizations? Vector files, spreadsheet/CSV 
files, PowerPoint, etc.  

 
Answer: Logos are in JPEG and EPS formats. 
 
Question: Will the graphs and charts need to be designed or will those be provided? 
 
Answer: Data and content will be provided by LAFPP.  They will need to be designed by 

consultant. 
 
Question: Is there a general distribution schedule for each of the communication 

materials (newsletters, benefit guides, etc.?) 
 
Answer: Newsletters are mailed quarterly to Active and Retired members.  All other 

communications, new or need updating, will be on an as-needed basis 
 
Question: How many individual outreach materials are printed per year? For  
 example: 3 Benefit Guides, 2 Brochures, etc. 
 
Answer: The Annual report is printed once a year.  The newsletter for Retired members 

is printed twice per year.   Summary Plan Descriptions (for Tier 6 only) are printed 
twice a year. 

  
Question: The RFP includes copy editing in the scope of services, Will the copy be 

submitted by LAFPP for insertion to the final design layout or is the 
designer/firm required to research and write copy?  Is the designer/firm 
responsible for final copy editing? Or is the copy editing limited to scope 
of the design layout? i.e. character count for brochures/flyers and editing 
copy to stay within page limits. 

 
Answer: We generally submit the copy for insertion to the final design.  We are asking if 

you provide the service in the event it is needed.  The copy editing will not be 
limited to the design layout.  If character count for brochure/flyers is part of your 
fees, you must choose to include in the Fee Structure (see Proposal Section 4.0). 
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Question: There seems to be a lot of variation in the size of the newsletters as well as 

the months that they are published: The December 2018 Newsletter is 2 
pages. September 2018 is 20 pages. August 2018 is 4 pages.  September 
2017 is 15 pages. 6(a). Do you typically adjust payment proportionately? 
Examples: If a newsletter needs to be 20 pages instead of 16, or 2 pages 
instead of 4. 6(b). Do you have an established or tentative schedule for the 
months and sizes of newsletters for the next 3 years, and if so, would you 
provide that schedule? 

 
Answer: There is no established schedule for the month or size of newsletters.  This will 

be vary based on the information that needs to be communicated.  Please refer 
to the Proposal Section 4.0 Fee Structure. 

 
Question: On page 9, Section 4.0, Fee Structure:   You indicate the size of each 

communication, but you don’t indicate the quantity required for each, on 
a yearly basis:  For example, how many 8-page newsletters? How many 
16-page newsletters? How many 8-page pamphlet? How many bulletins, 
handbooks, etc.? 

 
Answer: Over the course of a year, we draft 2 newsletters for Active members and 2 for 

Retired members.  The number of pages depends on the amount of information 
that needs to be relayed.  Any other communication is on an as-needed basis.  

 
Question: In your experience, how much time (weeks) does it typically take to 

produce one Newsletter, from beginning (deciding on content, obtaining 
articles, etc.) to final production?  

 
Answer: It generally takes from 8 to 10 weeks, depending on the amount of information. 

 
Question: Can you provide the actual number of graphic design hours that were 

required for any of the specific Newsletter samples? 
 

Answer: The number of hours varied.  Please provide the number of hours your firm will 
require.  

 
 
FEES 

 
Question: In Section 4.0: Fee Structure, you ask for the cost of miscellaneous 

services. It's hard to estimate this without knowing more about each 
project and the logistics involved. Can you provide more guidance?  

 

Answer: As the proposer, you must decide which fees you think may apply during the 
contract.  You can state a specific fee, an average or a range. 

 
  



Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 
Question: With regard to the Annual Report: You're requesting a price for a 150-page 

report. The 2018 report is 166 pages. If the 2019 or 2020 report were to be 
170 or 180 pages, would you increase the payment to the selected firm 
proportionately, from the base of 150 pages? 

 
Answer: The fees requested are for specific projects so that we can do a direct 

comparison of all bidders.  The annual report fee requested is close in 
approximate pages.  The actual fee would be adjusted accordingly. 

 
EVALUATION: 
 

Question: Does “most qualified” mean highest quality of work combined with an A+ 
track record of service?  

 
Answer:  “Most qualified” will be the firm that best meets our needs as described in Section 

4.2 Evaluation Criteria.  
 

Question: Does “best overall value” mean “lowest cost” or does it include more 
intangible things like customer service, efficiency/turnaround time, etc.? 

 
Answer: “Best Overall value” is the firm that best meets our needs as described in Section 

4.2 Evaluation Criteria. 
 
 
SUBMITTING PROPOSALS 
 
Question:  Is there a page limit for the response overall, or for any section? 
 

Answer:  There is no page limit for responses, however responses to questions must  be     
specifically answered within the context of the submitted proposal.  

 
Question: Can we submit our proposals via email? 
  
Answer: No. We will not accept proposals via email.  Section 2.2 of the RFP details the 

proposal submittal requirements. 
 
Question: Do you require the INSURANCE AND MINIMUM LIMITS form to be filled out 

and submitted with the proposal? 
 
Answer: No. If awarded the contract, the respondent will furnish the City evidence of 

Insurance coverage with minimum limits, as set forth in the Insurance Schedule 
of the Contract - Appendix 6.2 

 
 
 

 


